
 

 

 

 

CEDAR FALLS CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEE SCHEDULE 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

CITY HALL - COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MONDAY, JULY 16, 2018 

5:50 PM 
 
 

 
 

1. Review Code Section 14-149 - Parking Hard Surfacing Requirements.  
(25 Minutes) 
 

2. Levee Update. 
(35 Minutes) 
 

3. Bills.  
(5 Minutes) 
 

 



 



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Administration Division

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
  

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: July 12, 2018 

SUBJECT:  Review Code Section 14-149 - Parking Hard Surfacing Requirements 

 

Enclosed are several items for Council’s discussion of Section 14-149.  It includes the 
most pertinent materials staff identified from the discussion and adoption process, but 
there are certainly many more minutes or materials that could be assembled if 
necessary.  The packet includes the presentation staff will cover July 16th which is a 
compilation of the Council/P&Z meeting November 5, 2014 (reviewing recommendation 
from the Taskforce), January 19, 2015 Council meeting when the formal ordinance 
consideration process started, Council Committee on February 15, 2016 where the 
ordinance was reviewed, and an up to date paving status report.  There are several 
additional packet items: 1) the initial Single Family Dwelling Conversions to Rental 
Property Taskforce agenda where their mission is outlined along with the minutes from 
that meeting, 2) January 19, 2015 Council presentation, 3) February 15, 2016 
Committee of the Whole presentation and meeting minutes, 4) A letter from Steve 
Moore, City Attorney dated June 12, 2015 that responds to a citizen’s concern about the 
hard surfacing requirement and its relationship to health, safety and welfare purposes, 
and 5) Councilmember Green’s research brief. 
 
As Staff reviewed records and prepared information for Council’s discussion, we found 
specific discussion occurred on the paving requirement in January 2015 but even more 
so in the review of the ordinance’s implementation on February 15, 2016.  Staff will 
include this in Monday evening’s presentation.  That review concluded with a 
recommendation to maintain the hard surface requirement in Section 14-149, as written.  
The adopted Committee minutes reflect the Council motion carried 4-3 on the 
requirement for hard-surfaced driveways and parking areas for existing single-family 
rentals continuing to be phased in over 3-6 years. 
 
At the July 9, 2018 Council meeting, staff stated that the office of the state ombudsman 
investigated a complaint about compliance with the ordinance.  The City provided 
extensive information to that office and that office did not indicate that the City acted 

-1-

Item 1. 



 

 

improperly in adopting, implementing and enforcing the ordinance nor did that office 
recommend that any changes be made in the future concerning the City’s enforcement 
of the ordinance (other than a very minor wording change on our year in advance 
postcard notification).  No written statement was provided from the ombudsman.  The 
comment Staff conveyed to Council, was one verbally made to us and in the context of 
the ombudsman explaining why the office was not requesting that the City make any 
changes to the procedure used to implement and enforce the ordinance. 
 
The presentation Monday evening may be repetitive but staff wishes to cover the 
numerous occasions where open, public discussion occurred on this topic and the 
reason why hard surfacing is part of the requirements and applies to single-unit and 
duplex rentals. 
 
 
CC: Ron Gaines, PE, City Administrator 
 
 

-2-

Item 1. 



1

Review Code Section 14-149

Parking Hard Surfacing Requirements

Council Committee Discussion 

July 16, 2018

Minimum Rental Housing Code

Ordinance Background

• Single Family Home Conversion Task Force meetings  started 

January 2014.  Mission:
o Analyze scope & impact of conversion of single family homes to rental units in R-

1 & R-2 zoning districts.

o Determine methods of controlling, moderating and mitigating the negative 

aspects of single family conversions in conventional R-1 and R-2 zoned 

neighborhoods.

• Rental ordinance amended February 16, 2015

• Council review of these changes occurred February 15, 2016

• Summary of key changes included noting §14-149 to pave driveway, 

parking area and/or parking lot, within 3 years of permit renewal
Council Committee

July 16, 2018

-3-

Item 1. 



2

Minimum Rental Housing Code

Hard Surface for Parking – 14-149

Pave driveway, parking area and/or parking lot, within 3 

years of permit renewal.

A paved area, as defined in section 23, article VI of the City’s 

Code. It does not include gravel or granular surface materials.

Council Committee

January 19, 2015

Driveway Surface

Single & Duplex Properties

1,340 total properties

Council Committee

February 15, 2016

-4-

Item 1. 



3

Gravel Concerns

Rental

Council Committee

February 15, 2016

Gravel Concerns

Rental

Council Committee

February 15, 2016

Permeable alley benefits article: https://www.cleanwateriowa.org/success-

stories/2017/10/31/city-of-cedar-falls-improving-water-quality-with-permeable-

pavement?rq=city%20of%20cedar%20falls
(Added July 12, 2018) 

-5-

Item 1. 



4

Hard Surface Impact

Walnut St.

Olive St.

W
 2
6
th
S
t.

S
e
e
rle

y

North

Existing gravel 

lots

Paving allowed 

by parking lot 

standards

Hard Surface Impact

N
o
rth

O
liv
e
 S
t.

Council Committee

February 15, 2016

-6-

Item 1. 



5

Public Health, Safety & General Welfare Purposes

1. Hard-surfaced driveways and parking, and associated detention can 

reduce erosion of land and downstream flooding.

2. Non-improved surfaces can generate sediment and oil-based 

pollutants that flow into storm sewers and streams, contributing to 

pollution and impaired water quality (Iowa DNR lists the Dry Run Creek 

as an impaired waterway).

3. Slowing the rate of surface run-off into streams reduces flooding & 

flash flooding.  This is a safety concern we have had in the University 

Branch of Dry Run Creek, for example.

Council Committee

July 16, 2018

Public Health, Safety & General Welfare Purposes

Continued

4. Impacts to the neighborhood’s welfare and safety when excessive 

parking on the street.  Traffic safety and accessibility of emergency 

vehicles are concerns.  Appropriate off-street parking can address this.

5. Unclearly defined parking/driveways, lead to expansion of gravel areas.  

Parking beyond allowed limits eliminates grass areas that absorbed 

stormwater.  Erosion, stream sedimentation, and flooding continue as 

concerns. 

6. Rentals generate more vehicles per unit for prolonged times, thus more 

wear and tear on an unimproved area than an owner-occupied single 

unit home.  All the aforementioned issues are thereby exacerbated.

Council Committee

July 16, 2018

-7-

Item 1. 



6

City’s Outreach on Paving Requirement

Action Timing

Rental inspector notifies at inspection, it is in writing 

on rental records & owner signs acknowledgement

3 years before due

Currents articles Multiple since 

adoption

Postcard reminder 1 year before due

Letter reminder 1 month before due

Council Committee

July 16, 2018

Paving Status Report

February to July 2018

79.5% in compliance

17.0% plans in place or working with staff

3.5% non-responsive

Council Committee

July 16, 2018

-8-

Item 1. 



7

City’s Enforcement on Paving Requirement

• Seeking a plan for compliance, by deadline or within reasonable 

timeframe.

• Offer to talk with owners about the extent of hard surface required, how 

can it be reduced?

• No rental permit has been revoked at this point.

Council Committee

July 16, 2018

Recommendation

Section 14-149 remain as written, for the reasons covered in this 

presentation.

Council Committee

July 16, 2018

-9-

Item 1. 



 



-11-

Item 1. 



-12-

Item 1. 



-13-

Item 1. 



-14-

Item 1. 



1

Minimum Rental Housing Code

Single-Family Rental Dwelling Unit Occupancy Limits 

and other Key Changes to Rentals

Council Committee Discussion 

January 19, 2015

Minimum Rental Housing Code

Single-Family Rental Dwelling Unit Occupancy Limits

Summary of Changes:
• Existing registered rentals can continue 4 unrelated persons until 

sale/transfer

• New rentals limited to a family, 2 unrelated persons, or group rental

• Temporary permits must meet all changes (as if new)

• Family definition modernized

• Parking areas/lots to be hard surfaced

• Staff committee reviews requests for deviation

• Appeals to be heard by the Board of Rental Housing Appeals

Council Committee

January 19, 2015

-15-

Item 1. 



2

Minimum Rental Housing Code

Existing Rentals (registered prior to moratorium)

• Retain 4 unrelated persons, until sale/transfer – 14-220

• Termination provisions:

o Sale/transfer → potential reduction to 3 – 14-221

o Lacking current rental permit

• Pave driveway, parking area and/or parking lot, within 3 years of permit renewal 

– 14-149

Council Committee

January 19, 2015

Minimum Rental Housing Code

Existing Rentals (registered prior to moratorium)

• IF sale/transfer of any ownership - 14-221

o Occupancy then based on carrying capacity:

�

Council Committee

January 19, 2015

3 unrelated persons Lot width < 70’

Lot area < 8,000 sq. ft.

Street width < 31’

No parking on one side

4 unrelated persons Lot width ≥ 70’

Lot area ≥ 8,000 sq. ft.

Street width ≥ 31’

4 off-street parking spaces

o May appeal 3 unrelated limit to Board of Housing Rental 

-16-

Item 1. 



3

Minimum Rental Housing Code

New Rentals – 14-222

• New rentals limited to a family or 2 unrelated persons 

o Applicable to R-1, R-1SF, R-2, R-3*, R-4*, MU* or RP*

o Group rental permit for 3-5 unrelated persons, if: 

� Covenants allow & an approved site plan (if MU or RP)

� All other codes are met: building, fire, IPMC, zoning, nuisance

� Adequate carrying capacity 

� Applies to current owner, only

� May be revoked

� Highest occupancy requires annual inspection 

(5 unrelated)

o Group permit reviewed by staff committee

o Pave driveway, parking area and/or parking lot

o Appeals may be made
Council Committee

January 19, 2015

Minimum Rental Housing Code

New Rentals

• Group rental & carrying  capacity review: 14-222(f)(4) a-g

o Impact to character of the neighborhood (density, vehicles)

o Compliance with the International Property Maintenance Code occupancy 

level

o Sufficient lot size (width, area)

o Provides adequate off-street parking (1 per bedroom)

o Adequate public infrastructure

o Buffering of parking

o Compliance record for property or others 

under the same ownership

Council Committee

January 19, 2015

-17-

Item 1. 



4

Minimum Rental Housing Code

Temporary Permits (during moratorium) - 14-224

• Must meet all changes, similar to a new rental

• One year to meet regulations

• 11 temporary permits exist, 1 in progress

• May request extension

Council Committee

January 19, 2015

Minimum Rental Housing Code

International Property Maintenance Code - 14-4

• Referencing  the IPMC, preparing for its future adoption

• IPMC addresses such areas as property maintenance, 

nuisance-type issues, and minimum standards for adequate 

living space

Council Committee

January 19, 2015

-18-

Item 1. 



5

Minimum Rental Housing Code

Family Definition 14-34

Family =  single person or groups described as follows, provided they 

are a single housekeeping unit

a) Any number of related persons*

b) Two unrelated persons and their dependent children*

c) Not more than five persons who are granted a group 

rental permit

* May also have 1 additional person: live-in nanny, 

live-in maid, live-in caretaker, live-in nurse, foreign 

exchange student, or roomer.

Council Committee

January 19, 2015

Minimum Rental Housing Code

Hard Surface for Parking – 14-149

Pave driveway, parking area and/or parking lot, within 3 

years of permit renewal.

A paved area, as defined in section 23, article VI of the City’s 

Code. It does not include gravel or granular surface materials.

Council Committee

January 19, 2015

-19-

Item 1. 



6

Minimum Rental Housing Code

Occupancy Level Deviation Requests

New, Temporary, Expired or Terminated 

• Staff committee reviews requests for deviation, applying group rental & 

carrying capacity review of 14-222(f )(4) a-g

o Impact to character of the neighborhood (density, vehicles)

o Compliance with the International Property Maintenance Code 

occupancy level

o Sufficient lot size (width, area)

o Provides adequate off-street parking (1 per bedroom)

o Adequate public infrastructure

o Buffering of parking

o Compliance record for property or others under 

the same ownership
Council Committee

January 19, 2015

Minimum Rental Housing Code

Appeals

• Submit to city clerk within 30 days

• Burden of proof is on the appellant

• Hearing with the Board of Rental Housing Appeals

• Further appeal to court, within 30 days

Council Committee

January 19, 2015

-20-

Item 1. 



7

Minimum Rental Housing Code

Single-Family Rental Dwelling Unit Occupancy Limits and 

other Key Changes to Rentals

Council Committee Discussion 

January 19, 2015

Questions?

-21-

Item 1. 



 



1

Minimum Rental Housing Code
Reviewing Key Changes to Related Ordinances

February 15, 2016

Multi-Tier Approach to Community Concerns

• Proactive code enforcement efforts

• Rental ordinance changes

• Zoning ordinance changes

• Incentive program for conversion to owner-occupied

• Nuisance ordinance changes (in progress)

-23-

Item 1. 



2

Minimum Rental Housing Code
Single-Family Rental Dwelling Unit Occupancy Limits

Summary of Changes:
• Existing registered rentals continue 4 unrelated persons, until transfer

• New rentals

o Guaranteed occupancy level: family, 2 unrelated persons

o Review for group rental: 3-5 unrelated

• Family definition modernized

• Hard surfaces required

• Deviations → Staff committee

• Appeals → Board of Rental Housing Appeals

Minimum Rental Housing Code
Existing Single-Family Rentals (registered prior to 8/19/14)

• IF sale/transfer of any ownership, occupancy then based on 
carrying capacity: 

3 unrelated persons Lot width < 70’

Lot area < 8,000 sq. ft.

Street width < 31’

No parking on one side

4 unrelated persons Lot width ≥ 70’

Lot area ≥ 8,000 sq. ft.

Street width ≥ 31’

4 off-street parking spaces

o Appeal to Board of Rental Housing Appeals 

-24-

Item 1. 



3

Minimum Rental Housing Code
New Single-Family Rentals (after 8/19/14)

• New rentals guaranteed a family or 2 unrelated persons occupancy

o Applicable to single-family dwelling units in R-1, R-1SF, R-2, R-3, R-4, MU, RP

o Group rental permit for 3-5 unrelated persons

o Denials may be considered by Board of Rental Housing Appeals

Council Committee

January 19, 2015

Minimum Rental Housing Code
New Single-Family Rentals (after 8/19/14)

• Group rental carrying capacity review:
o Impact to character of the neighborhood

o Compliance with the International Property Maintenance Code
o Sufficient lot size

o Provides adequate off-street parking
o Adequate public infrastructure
o Buffering of parking

o Compliance record for property or others under the same ownership

-25-

Item 1. 



4

Questions & Data

• How many single-family rental units are in Cedar Falls?

• How many conversions happen per year?

• What is the occupancy level of those units?

• How many existing rentals have reduced occupancy level?

• How many new rentals have involved Group Rental Committee review?

• What are results of the Group Rental review?

• How have ordinance changes impacted sales?

• How have the ordinance changes impacted rental rates?

• How many properties have gravel?

• How many single-family rental units are in Cedar Falls?

• How many conversions happen per year?

• What is the occupancy level of those units?

• How many existing rentals have reduced occupancy level?

• How many new rentals have involved Group Rental Committee review?

• What are results of the Group Rental review?

• How have ordinance changes impacted sales?

• How have the ordinance changes impacted rental rates?

• How many properties have gravel?

Questions & Data

-26-

Item 1. 



5

Single-Family Rental Units and Conversions

Year

Rental 

Conversions

2011 123

2012 92

2013 86

2014 124

2015 71

1,340 single-family & duplex rental units. 

New Rental Reviews
Group Rental Committee

Month Amount

March 1

April 4

May 2

June 7

July 3

August 1

Sept. 3

Oct. 3

Dec. 2

Jan. 1

Feb. 3

Total 30

-27-

Item 1. 



6

Group Rental Committee
Decisions on Occupancy Level for New Rentals

Occupancy Level Request Approval

4 unrelated 20 16

3 unrelated 10 10

Family or 2 unrelated NA 4

Total 30 30

 $-

 $50,000

 $100,000

 $150,000

 $200,000

 $250,000

February March April May June July

Home Sales Information
Average Home Sales

2015

2014

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 S
a
le
s 
P
ri
ce

-28-

Item 1. 



7

Home Sales Information

$90,000 – 150,000 home

Year

Number of 

Closed Sales

Average  Days 

on the Market

All Cedar 
Falls Region CFS2

All Cedar 
Falls Region CFS2

2015 181 38 50 58

2014 119 29 46 52

2013 152 51 36 30

Impacts to Sale Price & Rental Rates

• Amount of homes/rentals on the market

• Interest rates

• Jobs & unemployment level

• Age and features of the home/unit and land

• Location (type of street, traffic level, adjacent uses [open space, 

commercial, rental, etc.], condition of adjacent properties)

• Local regulations

• School quality (and the proposed bond)

• UNI enrollment 

• State property tax roll back for rental properties

-29-

Item 1. 



8

Driveway Surface

Single & Duplex Properties

1,340 total properties

• Proactive code enforcement will improve all properties

• Occupancy level review is working, yet concern over impact to sale and 

predictability of a business model

• Paving is a concern

• Amount of parking may be a concern

• Dimension & setback of driveway flare out poses challenge 

in some situations

Evaluation of Changes

-30-

Item 1. 



9

• Proactive code enforcement will improve all properties

• Occupancy level review is working, yet concern over impact to sale 

and predictability of a business model

• Paving is a concern

• Amount of parking may be a concern

• Dimension & setback of driveway flare out poses challenge 

in some situations

Evaluation of Changes

Ordinance Review

Rental

Aspect Concern Recommendation

Occupancy level of any new 

single-family rental

Review involved for 3-5 unrelated 

persons: concern over added time 

& unpredictability.

3 unrelated persons (new), 

existing drop to 3 at sale.

Aspect Concern Recommendation

Occupancy level of any new 

single-family rental

Review involved for 3-5 unrelated 

persons: concern over added time 

& unpredictability.

3 unrelated persons (new), 

existing drop to 3 at sale.

Occupancy level: duplexes & 

multi-units

Impact of new ordinance? Clarify (leave, as is): 4 unrelated.

-31-

Item 1. 



10

Aspect Concern Recommendation

Occupancy level: transfer of 

single-family rental

Conflicting concerns:

• Interfamilial transfers different.

• Why preference to interfamilial?

Leave, as is.  No preference.

(Change from November public 

presentation.)

Hard surface Removal of gravel driveways. Leave, as is.

Ordinance Review

Rental

Aspect Concern Recommendation

Occupancy level: transfer of 

single-family rental

Conflicting concerns:

• Interfamilial transfers different.

• Why preference to interfamilial?

Leave, as is.  No preference.

(Change from November public 

presentation.)

Gravel Concerns

Rental

-32-

Item 1. 



11

Gravel Concerns

Rental

Hard Surface Impact

Walnut St.

Olive St.

W
 2

6
th

S
t.

S
e
e
rle

y

North

Existing gravel 

lots

Paving allowed 

by parking lot 

standards

-33-

Item 1. 



12

Hard Surface Impact

N
o
rth

O
live

 S
t.

Hard Surface Timeframes

-34-

Item 1. 



-35-

Item 1. 



-36-

Item 1. 



-37-

Item 1. 



-38-

Item 1. 



-39-

Item 1. 



 



 

 

 Cedar Falls Rental Property Hard-Surfacing Research Brief 
Rob Green, Cedar Falls City Council (At-Large)  rgreencf@gmail.com 

Research conducted May-July 2018 - viewable online at https://bit.ly/cf-paving 

 

Facts 

F1. In early 2015, significant changes to the Cedar Falls rental housing code were enacted. 
As part of a group of ‘bundled’ changes, Ordinance #2836 added a requirement for 
rental property driveways and parking areas to be paved within three years following the 
next rental housing code inspection.  1

F2. During the three city council meetings, only one public comment was specifically directed 
toward the hardscaping requirements of Ordinance #2836. Other aspects of Ordinance 
#2836 received significant public comment at all three readings.  2

F3. Ordinance #2836 passed on February 16, 2015, on a 6-1 vote. Councilors voting in favor 
at the final reading were Miller, DeBuhr, Runchey, Darrah, Wieland, and Stichter. 
Councilor Taiber voted against.  3

F4. With the passage of Ordinance #2836, the relevant section for hard-surfacing became 
Section 14-149 in the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances .  4

F5. Rental properties inspected in 2015 are now reaching the three-year compliance 
deadline noted in F1 above.  

F6. The Code of Ordinances requires that all residential property driveways be hard surfaced 
with either concrete or asphalt. Permeable hard-surfacing is permitted; gravel other 
loose material is expressly prohibited.   5

1 Cedar Falls City Council meeting minutes for 2/16/2015 (#50357). 

2 Cedar Falls City Council meeting videos  for 1/19/2015, 2/2/2015, and 2/16/2015. 

3 Cedar Falls City Council meeting minutes for 1/19/2015 (#50316), 2/2/2015 (#50336) and 2/16/2015 (#50357). 

4 Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls. Sec. 14-149 - Requirement that parking lots and parking areas be 
hard-surfaced.  The owner of each property upon which any residential rental dwelling unit or units is or are 
located shall have all driveways, parking lots, parking stalls or other parking areas serving said property 
hard-surfaced. For purposes of this section, hard surface means paving, as defined in section 23-157 of article 
VI, chapter 23, of this Code. Any such areas which are not hard-surfaced on the date of adoption of this section 
must be brought into compliance with this requirement by no later than three years following the date of the first 
minimum rental housing code inspection of any dwelling unit on the property that occurs following the date of 
adoption of this section. (Ord. No. 2836, § 8, 2-16-15)  Link 

5 Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls. Sec. 29-114 (g). - Access to public street for residential buildings. 
All driveways must be hard surfaced with either concrete or asphalt surface. Permeable hard surfacing will be 
permitted, not to include gravel or granular surfaced driveways.  Link 

 -41-

Item 1. 



 

 

Rental Property Hardscaping Research Brief (7 of 7) 

 

F7. City staff noted in a task force report, as justification for the new hardscaping 
requirement,  that “Gravel, dirt or turf parking areas have been prohibited by law since 
the early 1970’s.” (p.9).  6

F8. The City of Cedar Falls does not enforce the hardscaping provisions of 29-144(g) on 
existing owner-occupied residences ; only new construction need conform due to a 7

zoning practice known as ‘grandfathering’.  

F9. Property owners may continue to use their properties or maintain structures which were 
legal at the time of the enactment of the zoning rules which prohibited that use or 
structure.  This right is retained in perpetuity with the property, regardless of a change in 
land ownership.  8

F10. The expressed purpose of the Minimum Rental Housing Code is to “provide minimum 
standards to safeguard life or limb, health, property and public welfare by regulating and 
controlling the use, occupancy and maintenance of all residential rental buildings and related 
structures within the city.”  9

F11. Sec. 14-105 of the Code of Ordinances require that all rental property parking be organized 
and parking rules enforced.   10

F12. The Code of Ordinances requires that all parking lots in Cedar Falls shall be 
hard-surfaced, whether public or private, residential or business.  The code does allow 
that driveways may remain unpaved until the adjoining parking area is improved.  11

6 Single Family Home Conversion Taskforce (September 11, 2014)  “City Staff Recommendations” [Report]. 
Retrieved from http://www.cedarfalls.com/DocumentCenter/View/3577 

7“Landlord and Tenant Meeting” (Minute 51:03). City of Cedar Falls, February 26, 2015.  Retrieved from 
https://youtu.be/u3jEnxb1LYU?t=51m3s  

8 Sec. 29-112. - Nonconforming uses. Link 

9 Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls, Sec. 14-33. - Purpose of article.  Link 

10 Sec. 14-105. Site and Neighborhood.  (b) Structural requirements. Buildings should be maintained so as not to 
present a deteriorated condition indicating a blighted area. The site should be free of trash and maintained in 
conformance with accepted standards within the neighborhood. Parking should be organized, and parking rules 
shall be enforced. Garbage receiving areas shall be maintained and kept clean, and shall not provide access by 
rodents and vermin. 
 

11Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls. Sec. 29-177. - Offstreet parking spaces.  (e). General development 
standards. Every parcel of land used as a public or private parking area, parking space or parking lot, including a 
commercial parking lot, shall be developed and maintained in accordance with the following requirements:  
... 

(3).  Parking lots shall be hard surfaced. Their design shall be based on the amount, type and weight (axle 
loads) of anticipated traffic, the quality of the surfacing to be used and the supporting strength and 
character of the subgrade, all applied to a parking lot layout as selected by the designer and approved by 
the city engineering division. 

 -42-

Item 1. 



 

 

Rental Property Hardscaping Research Brief (7 of 7) 

 

F13. Paving is defined in city code as “any kind of hard surfacing including, but not limited to, 
Portland cement, concrete, bituminous concrete, brick, stabilized gravel or combinations 
of such materials, with the necessary base. ‘Paving’ shall not include surfacing with oil, 
gravel, oil and gravel, or chloride”.  12

F14. By city code, an occupancy permit will not be issued to residences which fail to comply 
with Section 14-149.  13

F15. Without a valid occupancy permit, a rental property may not be rented or leased to 
tenants, or occupied at all.  14

F16. City staff have noted that some situations (such as rental properties with exceptionally 
long driveways) may require additional consideration for determining hardscaping 
requirements.  15

F17. City staff have noted that the conversion of a single-unit dwelling for rental occupancy 
constitutes a ‘change of use’ which eliminates the protection of ‘grandfathering’ as 
described in F8 and F9.  

(4)  Any portion of property that is graded or improved in any fashion to accommodate vehicular parking 
or is intended or commonly used for vehicular parking shall meet parking lot design standards as 
specified herein. Any existing parking lot or parking area that does not meet existing standards as 
specified herein shall not be enlarged or expanded unless the entire parking lot area or parking area 
meets parking lot design standards as specified herein. 
 
(5)  All accessways or driveways to parking areas or parking lots shall be hard surfaced. Unimproved 
driveways or accessways in existence at the time of enactment of this article shall be hard surfaced only 
in the event that the on-site parking lot is expanded, hard surfaced or otherwise upgraded.  Link 
 

12 Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls. Sec. 23-157. - Definitions.  Paving means any kind of hard surfacing 
including, but not limited to, Portland cement, concrete, bituminous concrete, brick, stabilized gravel or 
combinations of such materials, with the necessary base. "Paving" shall not include surfacing with oil, gravel, oil 
and gravel, or chloride.  Link 

13 Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls.  Sec. 14 (73) - Inspection prior to issuance of occupancy permit. 
...prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit for any dwelling unit, the inspector shall inspect the dwelling unit to 
assure that it complies in all respect with all codes made applicable to dwelling units by the provisions of this 
chapter. No minimum rental housing occupancy permit shall be issued until all such requirements have been 
complied with, and all inspection, registration and other fees have been paid. Link 
 

14 Sec. 14-217. - Unlawful to lease, collect rent on, or occupy dwelling unit whose occupancy permit has been 
suspended.   Link 

15 “Tenant Landlord Workshop August 2015” (Minute 25:05). City of Cedar Falls, August 2015. Retrieved from 
https://youtu.be/RcZ3QHaBF2c?t=25m5s  
 

 -43-

Item 1. 



 

 

Rental Property Hardscaping Research Brief (7 of 7) 

 

F18. Section 16-2 of the City Code requires all businesses to obtain a business license prior 
to operation.  16

F19. Rental property owners are not required to obtain a business license prior to 
renting/leasing a property.  17

F20. Only residential uses, schools and select private non-commercial uses are permitted in 
the R-1 Residential District.  18

F21. At least one rental property is located in the R-1 residential district.  19

F22. The expressed purpose of the Minimum Rental Housing Code is to “provide minimum 
standards to safeguard life or limb, health, property and public welfare by regulating and 
controlling the use, occupancy and maintenance of all residential rental buildings and related 
structures within the city.”  20

F23. The Minimum Rental Housing Code provides broad discretionary powers for 
enforcement of fire, safety and health standards through Section 14-200.  21

16 Sec. 16-2. - Business license required. No person shall engage in, transact, carry on or do or cause to be done 
any vocation, trade, business, profession, exhibition, entertainment, game or act described in this chapter within 
the city without having paid the required license fee and obtained a license.. Link 
 

17 Ibid. 
 

18 Sec. 29-143. - R-1 residence district.  In the R-1 residence district, the following provisions, regulations and 
restrictions shall apply: 

 
(1) Principal permitted uses. Principal permitted uses are as follows: 

 
a. One- and two-family dwellings. 

 
b. Churches and accessory buildings, upon approval of the city council after recommendation of the 

city planning and zoning commission. 
 

c. Public and parochial schools, elementary and high, and other educational institutions having an 
established current curriculum the same as ordinarily given in city public schools. 
 

d. Private noncommercial recreational areas and facilities, swimming pools, and institutional or 
community recreation centers, including country clubs and golf courses. 
 

e. Farming and truck gardening, but not on a scale that would be obnoxious to adjacent areas 
because of noise or odors. 
 

f. Group home.  
. 

 
19 City of Cedar Falls Rental Inspections data [CSV File], retrieved July 17, 2017 

20 Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls, Sec. 14-33. - Purpose of article.  Link 

21  Sec. 14-200. - Hazardous or unsanitary premises. Hazardous or unsanitary premises shall include those 
premises on which an accumulation of weeds, vegetation, junk, dead organic matter, debris, garbage, offal, rat 

 -44-

Item 1. 



 

 

Rental Property Hardscaping Research Brief (7 of 7) 

 

F24. The Code of Ordinances provides that ordinances may be repealed with a majority vote 
of council, after three readings.  Failure to pass at any of the three readings causes the 
motion to fail.   22

F25. The current City Council contains four of the seven councilors who voted to pass 
Ordinance #2836 in 2015.  New councilors are Kruse (replacing Runchey in Ward 3), 
Green (replacing Taiber in At-Large), and Blanford (replacing Stichter in Ward 4).  

F26. The City Council may elect to repeal or amend Sec. 14-149 - Requirement That All 
Parking Lots and Parking Areas be Hard Surfaced without impacting the other provisions 
of the rental code.  

  

harborages, stagnant water, combustible materials and similar materials or conditions constitute fire, health or 
safety hazards. Link 
 

22 Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls.  Sec. 2-104. - Two considerations before final passage; how 
waived.  A proposed ordinance or amendment must be considered and voted on for passage at two council 
meetings prior to the meeting at which it is to be finally passed, unless this requirement is suspended by a 
recorded vote of not less than three-fourths of all of the members of the council. If a proposed ordinance, 
amendment, or resolution fails to receive sufficient votes for passage at any consideration and vote thereon, the 
proposed ordinance, amendment, or resolution shall be considered defeated.  Link 

 

 -45-

Item 1. 



 

 

Rental Property Hardscaping Research Brief (7 of 7) 

 

 

Opinions 

O1. Section 14-149 seems to be an unfair law, as it is crafted as a housing code which 
selectively targets rental property owners.  This code is simply enforcing Section 
29-114(g) -- the zoning ordinance requiring that ALL residential property driveways be 
hardscaped -- against a specified class of residential property owners.  

O2. The conversion of a home from single-family owner-occupied to rental does not 
constitute a change from ‘residential’ to ‘commercial’.  The home is still a residence, and 
no ‘change in use’ has occurred.  As such, any legal non-conforming use (as defined in 
our code) should still apply to the property as it relates to zoning compliance (aka 
‘grandfathering’).  

O3. All properties containing homes built prior to the 1970’s paving requirement (Section 
29-177) should be exempt from paving.  Expansion or addition to structures after that 
time would place the property into illegal non-conforming use, and the paving 
requirement should take effect.  

O4. One and two-unit rental properties specifically should not be considered business uses, 
as they do not require business permits (F17, F18). 

O5. One and two-unit rental properties specifically should not be considered commercial 
properties, as commercial uses would be prohibited in the R-1 residential zoning district. 
(F20, F21) 

O6. Poorly maintained parking areas and driveways can constitute a nuisance and can have 
an adverse impact on Cedar Falls’s stormwater management.  

O7. Section 14-149 does not appear to meet the Minimum Rental Housing Code’s purpose 
of safeguarding “ life or limb, health, property and public welfare”, and is therefore not 
appropriate for inclusion in that code.  

O8. Problems like loose gravel runoff, poorly maintained non-paved surfaces, and ‘gravel creep’ 
(i.e. the extension of gravel surfaces to increase available parking area) can be effectively 
addressed in other parts of the City Code, particularly in the Nuisance Ordinances and 
Section 14-200 (as described in F18).  Such an approach would be much more fair and 
equitable to all Cedar Falls property owners.  

 

  

 -46-

Item 1. 



 

 

Rental Property Hardscaping Research Brief (7 of 7) 

 

 

Recommendations 

R1. Section 14-149 of the Code of Ordinances should be brought before City Council in 
Committee of the Whole to discuss whether or not this ordinance safeguards “life or limb, 
health, property, and public welfare”, in keeping with the purpose of the Minimum Rental 
Housing Code (O4 & O5).  

R2. In a discussion of 14-149, City Council should explore other approaches to mitigating the 
negative effects of non-paved surfaces (O4) which are equitably applied to all properties 
in Cedar Falls, not just rentals.  

R3. After a Committee of the Whole discussion in which all available facts and data are 
presented, and various perspectives heard out, the council should vote on whether or 
not to continue, amend, or repeal Section 14-149 (and if necessary, to create/amend 
other ordinances which can equitably achieve the desired effect).  

 -47-

Item 1. 



 



Levee/Floodwall System Improvements 

Progress and Budget Status 

-49-

Item
 2. 



Segment 1: Ice House 
Segment 2: Broom Factory 
Segment 3: Broom Factory 
Trail Opening – Main St Bridge 

Segment 4: Peter Melendy Park 
Segment 5: 
South of First St – Western Homes 

North 

Greenhill Road 

Location Map 

-50-

Item
 2. 



Segment 1: Ice House 

•Levee wall complete. 
• Ice House sanitary pump station installed. 
• Ice House sanitary line for pump station complete. 
•Remaining work includes: finish grading, seeding, 
lighting installation, Ice House water connection, 
electrical service modifications, concrete 
stain/sealant. 
 

 

-51-

Item
 2. 



Segment 2: Broom Factory 

•Concrete levee wall extension and addition of 
counterforts complete. 

•Remain work includes: grading and seeding, 
concrete stain/sealant. 

 

-52-

Item
 2. 



Segment 3: Broom Factory 
Trail Opening – Main Street Bridge 

•Levee wall and footing nearing completion. 
•Lower retaining wall complete. 
•Remaining work includes: backfilling, grading, 
seeding, lighting installation, trail installation, 
concrete stain/sealant. 

 

-53-

Item
 2. 



Segment 4: Peter Melendy Park 

• Lower retaining wall complete. 
• Remaining work includes: 
Levee wall and footing removal and replacement. 
Promenade riverwalk removal and replacement. 
Park restoration. 
Trail and Lighting installation. 
Water main modifications. 
Backfilling, grading, seeding, concrete stain/sealant. 

 

-54-

Item
 2. 



Segment 5 
South of First St – Western Homes 

• Most of earthen levee has been raised 2 feet. 
• New concrete wall and footing installation complete at 

Water Reclamation Facility. 
• Small section of new concrete wall and footing nearing 

completion at RR opening. 
• Unsuitable materials removed from inspection trench, 

trench backfilled, and weighted toe installed north of E 
9th St. 

 

 

-55-

Item
 2. 



Segment 5 
South of First St – Western Homes 

Remaining work: 
• Install 2 foot extension on existing concrete wall near E 9th St. 
•Backfill inspection trench and install new earthen levee near 

Western Homes. 
•Complete installation of new concrete wall near RR opening. 
•Modify RR opening to support invisible wall. 
• Install arch pipe extension and adjust storm and sanitary  

manhole structures. 
 

 

 

-56-

Item
 2. 



Segment 5 
South of First St – Western Homes 

Remaining work: 
•Trail restoration / repair. 
•Plaza and recreational trail. 
•Western Homes entrance and parking lot grading and paving. 
•Storm sewer installation near E 9th St. 
•Lighting installation. 
•Concrete stain/sealant. 

 

 

-57-

Item
 2. 



Segment 1: Ice House 
Project Challenges 

-58-

Item
 2. 



Segment 1: Ice House 
Project Challenges 

-59-

Item
 2. 



Segment 2: Broom Factory 
Project Challenges 

-60-

Item
 2. 



Segment 2: Broom Factory 
Project Challenges 

-61-

Item
 2. 



Segment 3: Broom Factory 
Trail Opening – Main Street Bridge 

Project Challenges 
 

-62-

Item
 2. 



Segment 3: Broom Factory 
Trail Opening – Main Street Bridge 

Project Challenges 

-63-

Item
 2. 



Segment 4: Peter Melendy Park 
Project Challenges 

-64-

Item
 2. 



Segment 4: Peter Melendy Park 
Project Challenges 

-65-

Item
 2. 



Segment 4: Peter Melendy Park 
Project Challenges 

-66-

Item
 2. 



Segment 4: Peter Melendy Park 
Project Challenges 

-67-

Item
 2. 



Segment 4: Peter Melendy Park 
Project Challenges 

-68-

Item
 2. 



Segment 4: Peter Melendy Park 
Project Challenges 

-69-

Item
 2. 



Segment 5 
South of First St – Western Homes 

Project Challenges 

-70-

Item
 2. 



Segment 5 
South of First St – Western Homes 

Project Challenges 

-71-

Item
 2. 



Segment 5 
South of First St – Western Homes 

Project Challenges 

-72-

Item
 2. 



Segment 5 
South of First St – Western Homes 

Project Challenges 

-73-

Item
 2. 



Budget Summary 

-74-

Item
 2. 



-75-

Item
 3. 



-76-

Item
 3. 



-77-

Item
 3. 



-78-

Item
 3. 



-79-

Item
 3. 



-80-

Item
 3. 



-81-

Item
 3. 



-82-

Item
 3. 



-83-

Item
 3. 



-84-

Item
 3. 



-85-

Item
 3. 



-86-

Item
 3. 



-87-

Item
 3. 



-88-

Item
 3. 



-89-

Item
 3. 



-90-

Item
 3. 



-91-

Item
 3. 



-92-

Item
 3. 



-93-

Item
 3. 



-94-

Item
 3. 



-95-

Item
 3. 



-96-

Item
 3. 



-97-

Item
 3. 



-98-

Item
 3. 



-99-

Item
 3. 



-100-

Item
 3. 



-101-

Item
 3. 



-102-

Item
 3. 



-103-

Item
 3. 



-104-

Item
 3. 



-105-

Item
 3. 



-106-

Item
 3. 



-107-

Item
 3. 



-108-

Item
 3. 



-109-

Item
 3. 



-110-

Item
 3. 



-111-

Item
 3. 



-112-

Item
 3. 



-113-

Item
 3. 



-114-

Item
 3. 



-115-

Item
 3. 



-116-

Item
 3. 



-117-

Item
 3. 



-118-

Item
 3. 



-119-

Item
 3. 



-120-

Item
 3. 



-121-

Item
 3. 



-122-

Item
 3. 



-123-

Item
 3. 



-124-

Item
 3. 



-125-

Item
 3. 



-126-

Item
 3. 


	AGENDA
	1. Review Code Section 14-149 - Parking Hard Surfacing Requirements. 
(25 Minutes)
	[1. Council Committee Memo on paving 7-16-18.docx]
	[2. Council Committee on paving 7-16-18.pdf]
	[3. Task Force minutes-kick off meeting 1-30-14.pdf]
	[4. Rental code changes-Committee discussion 1-19-15.pdf]
	[5. Rental code 6-mo review-Council presentation 2-15-16.pdf]
	[6. COW minutes 2-15-16.pdf]
	[7. Moore letter on paving 6-12-15.pdf]
	[8. Green Rental Property Hard-Surfacing Research Brief.pdf]

	2. Levee Update.
(35 Minutes)
	[7-16-18 Levee Update Committee Presentation.pdf]

	3. Bills. 
(5 Minutes)
	[Daily Invoices 071618.pdf]
	[Council Invoices 071618.pdf]


